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UnifiedNames, Inc.,

Defendants.

On August 6, 2007, the Clerk of this Court entered the default of defendants
RegisterFly.Com, Inc. and UnifiedNames, Inc. (collectively, “Defendants” or
“RegisterFly”) for failure to timely plead or otherwise defend against the above-
referenced action. On Septemberzy, 2007, upon proper notice, this Court provided
the parties an oportunity to be heard on the sufficiency of this Default Judgment.

IT IS ORDERED that the following facts are established:

1.  This is an action for breach of contract, injunctive relief, and
declaratory relief with respect to the repeated breaches by Defendant

RegisterFly.Com, Inc. (and its parent company, UnifiedNames, Inc.) of its contract
with ICANN. \b}
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2. Plaintiff ICANN is a not-for-profit public benefit corporation
organized under the laws of the State of California with its principal place of }*
business in Marina del Rey, California.

3. Defendant RegisterFly.Com, Inc. is a for-profit public corpoﬂration'iijf
organized under the laws of the State of Delaware with its principal place of
business in Miami Beach, Florida.

4.  Defendant UnifiedNames, Inc. is the parent company for
RegisterFly.Com, Inc. Defendant UnifiedNames, Inc. is a for-profit public
corporation organized under the laws of the State of New Jersey with a separate
principal place of business in Miami Beach, Florida.

5. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action under
28 U.S.C. § 1332(a)(2). The amournt in controversy exceeds $75,000, exclusive of
interest and costs, and the dispute is between a citizen of California, [CANN, a
citizen of Florida and Delaware, RegisterFly.Com, Inc., and a citizen of New Jersey
and Florida, UnifiedNames, Inc.

6.  Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(a) because a substantial part
of the events giving rise to the claims in this case occurred in this judicial district.
Further, Section 5.6 of the RAA provides that jurisdiction and exclusive venue for
all litigation concerning the RAA shall be in a court located in Los Angeles,
California.

7. Defendant RegisterFly.Com, Inc. served as an ICANN-accredited
registrar. On September 13, 2004, ICANN entered into a registrar accreditation
agreement with “Top Class Names, Inc.” On or around November 22, 2004, Top
Class Names, Inc. filed a Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation
with the State of Delaware, changing its name to RegisterFly.Com, Inc.

8.  RegisterFly was no longer following the appropriate domain name
registration process required under the RAA with ICANN, and RegisterFly appears

to be in a state of complete disarray.
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9.  Neither ICANN nor RegisterFly has been excused from performance
of its obligations under the RAA. ICANN is in full compliance with its contractual
obligations under the RAA.

10. RegisterFly engaged in conduct violating multiple sections of the RAA
and failed to cure the breaches within the fifteen working day cure period allowed
for under Section 5.3 of the RAA.

11.  Under Section 3.3 of the RAA, RegisterFly was required to maintain
an interactive web page with daily updates concerning all active Registered Names
sponsored by the Registrar. RegisterFly failed to maintain the continuous
operability of its web page and failed to perform the required updates to the
publicly available data in violation of Section 3.3.

12.  Under Section 3.4 of the RAA, RegisterFly was required to maintain
electronic records for each active Registered Name it sponsors in its registry.
RegisterFly was also required to make those records available to ICANN for
inspection at ICANN’s request. Despite numerous requests for inspection by
ICANN, RegisterFly refused to allow ICANN to inspect and audit the Data, in
violation of the contract.

13.  Section 3.6 of the RAA required RegisterFly to escrow with ICANN a
complete copy of the Data for all names registered with RegisterFly. ICANN
requested a complete copy of all RegisterFly registration Data on numerous
occasions in February and March 2007. In violation of Section 3.6, RegisterFly
failed to provide ICANN with this complete electronic copy within the timeframe
required. | |

14. Under Section 4.1 of the RAA, RegisterFly was required to follow
ICANN’s Transfer Policy. In violation of this provision, RegisterFly ignored its
customers’ transfer requests. RegisterFly failed to effectuate transfers, failed to
provide the necessary codes to facilitate transfers, and failed to unlock names to

allow for transfers.
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